





Government of Haryana

Secretariat for Information Technolo
Ref. Memo No. Admn/292/06/1SIT/993 Dated 02-02-2010

- Annexure-1

Subject:  Guidelines on the State Portal & Departmental Websites

[A]

Institutional mechanism for managing the State Portal: State Portal
Management Cell (SPMC) at Secretariat for IT, Haryana.

The State Portal is covered under a separate initiative known as "SSDG,
State Portal and Gap Infrastructure” project. As per the DIT, Gol guidelines,

‘a Project e-Mission Team (PeMT) is required to be formed which will be

responsible for all portal related aspects;

The PeMT shall designate one-Senior officer as State Portal Content Manager
(SPCM) who would be the focal contact point regarding portal activities and

liaison with the nodal officers of various departments on all portal related
aspects;

A suitable content management tool shall be deployed to facilitate
effective content management. This tool can be used directly by the
designated Departmental nodal officer, t.heréby reducing complexities

arising out of content ‘aggregation’ that needs to be achieved in the State
Portal; : £

In addition to the PeMT, the State e-Mission Team (SeMT), which would be a
part of SIT Haryana, shall provide additional support in monitoring and -
oversight of the State Portal;

NIC-HSU has been designaté_d as Haryana State Portal Administrator &
Technical Coordinator and will be responsible for all technical issues related
to State Portal and other departmental web sites. Currently, Mr. Pardeep
Kaushal, Scientist “D” shall hold charge as Web Services Coordinator;

One Web Desigrier and one Web Developer would be part of the team in due
course of time.
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[B]

1)

Responsibilities of Parties

PeMT and NIC will be jointly responsible for:

i)

i)

fif)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

xi)

Design/re-design, hosting and technical maintenance of the State
Portal;

Provisioning of resources necessary' for their part of the work;
Releasing website standards & guidelines for design; development &

hosting of websites;

Registration of domain. names for various State Government
organizations under the gov.in domain;

Hosting of Government websites under .gov.in domain at State/
National data centres depending on the availability of the required

‘hosting platform;

Enabling content updates (through manual intervention or an
appropriate tool) through a secure VPN connection to the concerned
organization for the web sites owned by respective organization;

Create user IDs for interested departments on the tenders portal
where the Government organizations can upload their tenders and
these tenders can be accessed through departmental website also;

Provide technical support in providing e-mail facility to all
government organizations as per Govt. policy; '

Ownership of website content related to DIT;

Provide a link of departmental websites & web enabled applications
under appropriate headings on the State Portal;

Facilitate department(s) in the Security Audit that would be
necessary prior to hosting content on the website.
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2)

Individual Depaﬂ_:ments!Organizations will be responsible for:

i)

fii)

v)

Set up a website coordination celL in the Department/ organization

~and designate one officer as website Nodal Officer for the-

Department;

This cell shall carry out all tasks related to updation of their

~ contents on their own Departmental website as well as the state

Portal;

The Nodal Officer shall ensure timely and accurate updates related
to the Departmental website. Finalization of the website and
obtaining necessary approvals from the Department both for
Departmental Portal and the State Portal shall be the responsibility
of the Nodal Officer;

~ Compile the latest public information contents related to the

organization (e.g. downloadable Forms, public notices, circulars,
schemes, services, statistics, reports etc.) and ensure that this
information is available on departmental official web site;

If a Departmental website is NOT hosted in a .gov.in-domain, take

immediate steps for registration of departmental web site under
.gov.in domain.

Responsibilities of the Public Relations Department

)

ii)

Set up a ‘Web Content Management Cell’ that would regularly

compile and update government information for Haryana
Government portal;

Take content ownership on State Portal for updating the contents
related to: .

a) Citizen Information/ Services like - Press Releases,
Government Tenders , Photo Gallery, Govt Jobs Notifications,
Admission Notices, Government. Achievements/

Advertisements, Public Notices, Historical Information about
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[l

Haryana, Telephone Directory, Complaints & Public
Grievances Redressal Services;

b). Administrative information of State like officers in CM Office,
Officers in Governor Office, Ministers, Administrative
Secretaries, Planning Board, Public Holidays.

Responsibilities of Administrative Reforms Department/ Secretariat
Establishment:

i) IAS/HCS Civil List, Service Rules, Acts, GOs, Memos, Instructions,
Right to Information ACT Services, Citizen Charter, Forms and
Procedures, Govt. Policies;

ii)  DDO’s Codes, FD Instructions, Notifications/ Orders, Employees GPF,
Pension Services.

Method for obtaining a website address with “gov.in”

The use of ‘.gov.in domain is restricted to the constituents of Indian -

Government at various levels right from Centre, State/ UT, District & Sub District,
Block, Village etc. The Department/organization has to take the following steps to
obtain a website address under .gov.in :

L

Finalize a domain name for the organization by following the naming
conventions given in “Guidelines for Indian Government Web sites”;

Check the availability of the selected website name in
http: //registry.gov.in;

Contact Web Coordinator, NIC Haryana State Centre for registration of
domain name under gov.in;

Send an authorization letter in the prescribed format to the domain
registrar on official letter head of the organization;

Complete details and FAQs are available at http://registry.gov.in
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[D]

[E]

Steps required to be followed for hosting a website:

All Haryana Govt. Departments or State owned organizations are required to
follow Guidelines for Indian Govemnment Websites which have been
circulated to all Departments vide SIT Memo No. 1/292/195 dated
13/03/2009. These guidelines are also -available at websites
http://haryanait.gov.in and http://haryana.gov.in. '

Following steps need to be followed in this behalf:
i) Régister your domain name as explained in this guideline;

i) Develop your website design and content for your organization.
Website development can be done In-house, through HARTRON/ NIC-
HSU or through an empanelled agency of Haryana Government;

iif) Obtain a security audit certificate for the web site to be hosted. It is
mandatory for every web site to l;mdengo a security audit before it is
‘hosted on NIC Da'ta Centres. The security audit of a dynamic website
is to be conducted by any of the empanelled vendors of Govt. of
India on a payment basis. A list of such vendors is available at web
site of Computer Emergency Response Team of India (CERT-In) i.e.
http://cert-in.org.in The sécun’ty audit/self assessment report of

every static web site is conducted free of cost at NIC Haryana State
Centre;

iv) Once the security audit has been completed, the concemed
department/ organization will need to contact NIC Haryana State

Centre who will facilitate the hosting of website at the NIC Data
Centre.

Maintaining and updating an ekisting website

After successful hosting of website, the user needs to take full responsibility
for maintenance of the web site. All documents shall indicate the date of
posting of information on the website [in Blue] and the date of last update
of the content at the end of the document [in Red]. All contents on the web
site are to be uploaded/ deleted/ edited by the concemed organization
itself and steps should be taken to keep the web content up to date. NIC
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Haryana State Centre shall provide familiarization/ orientation to the
officials of the organization on updatihg websites in a secure manner. NIC
shall also provide the following additional facilities to support the
concermned Department to enable websit_e updates:

i) VPN useraccount for connecting to the NIC' VPN gateway;
ii) VPN certificate for use during updating of the web site;

iii)  FTP user/password for logging into the NIC web server for updating
the web site.

Guidelines for the State Portal and Departmental Websites
6of 12



Government of Haryana -
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[F1 List of Haryana Government web sites owned by various
Government Departments/ Boards/ Corporations.

1) List of Websites hosted at NIC Data-Centre, NIC-HQ

:lr. Department URL of the Web Site - Status
(n] =
1 Haryana State Portal | http:// haryana.gov.in - Online
2 Accountant General http://a .gov.in Online
3 | Agriculture nttp://agriharyana.nic.in Online
4 Animal’ Husbandry & | http:// pashudhanharyana.gov.in Online
Dairying
5 __ | Archaeology & Museums | http:// archaeologyharyana.nic.in__ | Online
6 Archives . http://archivesharyana.nic.in Under Process
7 Civil Aviation http://haraviation.gov.in Online
8 Consolidation, Land | http://jamabandi.nic.in Online
Records ; :
Dev. & Panchayats http://haryanadp.gov.in Under Process
10 Director Secondary | http:// dseharyana.gov.in Under Process
Education, Haryana e
11 E.S.A. http://esaharyana.gov.in Online
12 | Higher Education . http://highereducationharyana.gov | Online
.in '
13 School Education http://schooleducationharyan a.gov | Online
E et 1] '
14 Elementary Education http:// hargrathmik.gov.in Online
15 Elections ; .| http://ceoharyana.gov.in Online
16 | Electronics & | http://haryanait.nic.in Online
Information Technology | :
17 | Environment -| http://harenvironment.gov.in Online
18 Excise & Taxation http://haryanatax.gov.in Domain name
booked under
gov.in, but site has
been shifted to
private servers.
19 | Finance Department | http://finhry.gov.in Online
20 | Fisheries ttp://harfish.gov.in Online
21 | Food & Supplies | http://haryanafood.nic.in Online
22 | Forests http://haryanaforest. gov.in Online
23 Health Services http://haryanahealth. gov.in ‘Online
24 | HIPA : http://hipagurgaon.gov.in Online
25 | Home Guards & Civil http://homeguardsharyana.gov.in | Online
Defence 3 ;
26 | Industries & Commerce http://haryanaindustries.nic.in Online
and Mines & Geology
27 | Indl. Trg. &Voc. | http://itiharyana.gov.in Online
Education :
28 | Irrigation http://hid.gov.in Online
29 | Labour Commissioner | http://hrylabour.gov.in | Online
30 | Haryana State Legal | http://hslsa.nic.in _| Online
Services Authority e
31 | Police http://haryanapolice.gov. in Online
32 | Prisons http://haryanaprisons.gov.in Under Process
33 Public  Relations & | http://prharvana.gov.in Under Process
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:lr. Department g URL of the Web Site Status

2]
Cultural Affairs and
grievances

34 | PW (B&R) http://haryanapwd. gov.in Online

35 | Renewable Energy http://hareda.gov.in Online

36 | Rural Development http://haryanarural.gov.in Online

37 | Social Justice & | http://socialjusticehry.gov.in Online
Empower

38 Wel. of SCs & BCs- _| http://scbchry.gov.in - Online

39 | Sports & Youth Affairs | http://haryanasports.gov.in Online

40 | Supplies & Disposals http://haryanadsd.nic.in Under Process

4 Tech. Education http://techeduhry.nic.in Online

42 | Tourism http://haryanatourism.gov.in Online

43 | Town & Country Plg. http://tcpharyana.gov.in Online

44 | Transport * | http://hartrans. gov.in Online

45 Treasuries & Accounts http://hrtreasuries. gov.in | Online

46 | Vigilance L http://haryanavigilance.gov.in Online

47 | Women & Child Dev. http://wedhry.gov.in Online

48 | Chief Secretary | http://csharyana.gov.in Online
Haryana ' ;

49 | Rajya Sainik Board http://rsbharyana.gov.in Online

50 | IAS Officers Association | http://iasoaharyana.nic.in Online

51 IAS Officers Wives Asso. | http://iasowaharyana.nic.in Online

52 | CM Haryana Office http://haryanacmoffice.gov.in Under Process
Boards and Corporations

1 Agrl. Mktg. Board | http://hsamb.gov.in _Online

2 CADA http://cadaharyana.nic.in Online

3 Haryana State Coop. | http://harcobank.nic.in Online
Apex Bank A, .

4 Fed. of Coop. Sugar | http://harvanasugarfed.gov.in Under Process
Mills Ltd.

5 | HAFED http://hafed.gov.in Online

6 State Counselling Board | http://tehadmissions.gov.in Online

7 Haryana  Board  of | http://hbse.nic.in Online
School Education :

8 HARTRON http://hartron.gov.in Under Process

9 Forests Dev. Corpn. http://hcfp.gov.in Online

10 Housing Board http://hbh.nic.in Online

11 HSIIDC http://hsiidc.gov.in Online

12 | Khadi & Village Ind. | http://harkhadi.nic.in Online
Board

13 Shri Mata Mansa Devi | http://mansadevi.nic.in Online
Shrine Board i

14 | Mewat Dev. Agency http://mda.nic.in Online

15 | Pollution Control Board | http://hspcb.gov.in Online

16 | Shivalik Dev. Board http://sda.gov.in Online

17 HUDA http://huda.nic.in Online

18 | Urdu Akademi http://haryanaurdu.nic.in Online

19 | Warehousing Corpn. http://hwe.nic.in Online

20 .| Haryana Seeds Dev Corp | http://haryanaseeds.gov.in Under Process

21 HVPN http://hvpn.gov.in Online

Other Web sites of Haryana
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Sr. Department URL of the Web Site Status

No
Other Web sites of Haryana

1 Controller of | http://ccaharyana.gov.in Online
Communication
Accounts, Haryana

2 Chief Information | http://cicharyana.gov.in Online
Commissioner, Haryana

3 Central Institute of | http://cirb.gov.in Online
Research on Buffaloes

4 Central Soil Salinity | http://cssri.nic.in Online
Research Institute

5 Northern Region Farm | http://dacnet.nic.in/nrfmtti Online
Machinery Training &
Testing Institute, Hisar.

6 DRDA Panipat http://drdapnp.gov.in Online

7 DRDA Sirsa http://drdasirsa.gov.in Online

8 DRDA Faridabad http://drdafaridabad.gov.in Online

9 DRDA Fatehabad http://drdafatehabad.gov.in Online

10 E-Disha Project http://edisha.gov.in Under Process

11 Forensic Science Lab., | http://fslharyana.nic.in Online
Madhuban (Haryana)

12 Government http://govtpolynlk.nic.in Online
Polytechnic, Nilokheri,
Haryana

13 Haryana Governor http://governorofharyana.gov.in Under Process

14 Govt Polytechnic, | http://gpsonipat.gov.in Under Process
Sonipat

15 Haryana Vidhan Sabha http://haryanaassembly.gov.in Online

16 Forms & Procedures http://haryanaforms.nic.in Online

17 Haryana Judiciary http://haryanajudiciary.gov.in Under Process

18 Raj Bhawan, Haryana http://haryanarajbhawan.gov.in Under Process

19 Haryana Results http://haryanaresults.nic.in Online

20 Haryana Electricity | http://herc.nic.in Online
Regulatory Commission

21 High Court of Punjab & | http://highcourt.chd.gov.in Online
Haryana, Chandigarh

22 Rajya Bal Bhawan http://hrbalbhawan.gov.in Online

23 Lokayukta Department http://hrlokayukta.gov.in Online

24 National Institute of | http://nitkkr.nic.in Online
Technology,
Kurukshetra

25 National Research | http://nrce.nic.in Online
Centre on Equines
(NRCE)

26 Indira Gandhi | http://gctohana.gov.in/ Online
Government  college,
Tohana

27 National Power Training | http://npti.nic.in/ Online
Institude

28 Haryana State | http://onlinetesthry.nic.in Online
Counseling Society

29 Pandit Baghwat Dayal | http://pgimsrohtak.nic.in Online
Sharma Post Graduate
Institute of Medical
Science, Rohtak

30 Punjab Judiciary http://punjabjudiciary.gov.in Under Process

31 Right to Information, | http://rtiharyana.gov.in Under Process
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Sr. Department URL of the Web Site Status
No
Haryana
32 State Board Technical | http://sbtehry.gov.in Under Process
Education
33 State Election | http://secharyana.gov.in Online
Commissioner, Haryana
34 Small Industries Service | http://sisiharyana.gov.in Online
Institute, Karnal
35 Administrative Reforms | http://archaryana.gov.in Under Process
Commission, Haryana
36 Bhiwani Police http://bhiwani.haryanapolice.gov.i | Online
n
37 Gurgaon Police http://gurgaon.haryanapolice.gov.i | Online
n
38 Hisar Police http://hisar.haryanapolice.gov.in Online
39 Jind Police http://]ind.haryanapolice.gov.in Online
40 Kaithal Police http://kaithal.haryanapolice.gov.i Online
n
41 Karnal Police http://karnal.haryanapolice.gov.in | Online
42 Kurukshetra Police http://kurukshetra.haryanapolice. | Online
gov.in
43 Mahendragarh Police http://narnaul.haryanapolice.gov.i | Online
n
44 Panchkula Police http://panchkula.haryanapolice.go | Online
v.in
45 Panipat Police http://panipat.haryanapolice.gov.i | Online
n
46 Rohtak Police http://rohtak.haryanapolice.gov.in | Online
47 Sirsa Police http://sirsa.haryanapolice.gov.in Online
48 Jhajjar Police http://jhajjar.haryanapolice.gov.i | Online
n
49 Fatehabad Police http://fatehabad.haryanapolice.go | Online
v.in
50 Sonipat Police http://sonipat.haryanapolice.gov.i | Online
n
51 Faridabad Police http://faridabad.haryanapolice.go | Online
v.in
52 Mewat Police http://mewat.haryanapolice.gov.in | Online
53 Rewari Police http://rewari.haryanapolice.gov.in | Online
54 Yamunanagar Police http://yamunanagar.haryanapolice | Online
.gov.in
55 Railways Police http://railways.haryanapolice.gov. | Online
in
56 Palwal Police http://palwal.haryanapolice.gov.in | Online
57 Karnal Prison http://karnalprison.gov.in Online
58 Haryana Email http://hry.nic.in Online
59 Rohtak Subdivision, | http://rohtaksubdivision.nic.in Online
Haryana
60 Commando Police http://commando.haryanapolice.q | Under Process
ov.in
61 PIS Haryana http://haryanapis.nic.in Under Process
62 Haryana Archives http://haryanaarchives.gov.in Under Process
63 Women & Child Dev | http://hwdc.gov.in Under Process
Corp
64 Haryana State Board of | http://hsbte.gov.in Under Process
Technical Education
65 DPR Haryana Magazine http://haryanasamvad.gov.in Under Process
66 DPR Haryana Magazine http://haryanareview.gov.in Under Process
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Sr. Department URL of the Web Site Status
No
67 Haryana State Seed | http://hssca.gov.in Under Process
Certifying Agency
68 Public Private | http://pppinharyana.gov.in Under Process
Partnership in Haryana
69 Architecture http://vaastukalahry.gov.in Under Process
Department
70 Court Cases Haryana http://hrycourtcases.nic.in Under Process
71 State Crime Records | http://scrb.haryanapolice.gov.in Online
Bureau Haryana
72 Ambala Police http://ambalapolice.gov.in Under Process
73 B.Ed Admissions | http://hrybedadmissions.nic.in Under Process
Haryana
74 Political & Services | http://ehradmhry.gov.in Under Process
Dept
75 Haryana Power | http://www.hpgcl.gov.in Online
Generation Corp Ltd.
Districts Web Sites
1 Ambala District http://ambala.gov.in Online
2 Bhiwani District http://bhiwani.gov.in Online
3 Faridabad District http://faridabad.nic.in Online
4 Fatehabad District http://fatehabad.gov.in Online
5 Gurgaon District http://gurgaon.gov.in Online
6 Hisar District http://hisar.nic.in Online
7 Jhajjar District http://jhajjar.nic.in Online
8 Jind District http://jind.gov.in Online
9 Kaithal District http://kaithal.gov.in Online
10 Karnal District http://karnal.gov.in Online
11 Kurukshetra District http://kurukshetra.gov.in Online
12 Mahendragarh District http://mahendragarh.gov.in Online
13 Panchkula District http://panchkula.gov.in Online
14 Panipat District http://panipat.gov.in Online
15 Rewari District http://rewari.gov.in Online
16 Rohtak District http://rohtak.gov.in Online
17 Sirsa District http://sirsa.gov.in Online
18 Sonipat District http://sonipat.nic.in Online
19 Yamunanagar District http://yamunanagar.nic.in Online
List of Websites hosted locally at State Data-Centre
Sr. Department URL of the Web Site Status
No
1 Public Health http://wss.hry.nic.in Online
Engineering
Department
2 Haryana Govt http://webl.hry.nic.in/notifications Online
Notifications and
Orders
3 District Revenue http://webl.hry.nic.in/dish Online
Directory
4 GIS Haryana http://webl.hry.nic.in/gish Online
5 Lokayukta Haryana | http://webl.hry.nic.in/lokayukta Online
6 Acct. General http://webl.hry.nic.in/aghry Online

Haryana
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7 IAS/HCS Civil List http://webl.hry.nic.in/civillist Online
8 Haryana Budget http://webl.hry.nic.in/budget Online
9 Haryana Jobs http://webl.hry.nic.in/jobs Online
10 Haryana Tenders http://webl.hry.nic.in/tender Online
11 Haryana Loans http://webl.hry.nic.in/loanweb Online
12 Land Records http://webl.hry.nic.in/lrmpr Online
Monthly Progress
Reports
13 Sectt. Library http://webl.hry.nic.in/library Online
14 Labor Court http://webl.hry.nic.in/laborcourt Online
Haryana
15 Result through http://webl.hry.nic.in/hbsemarksheet Online
Binocular /main.htm
16 PWD(B&R) Haryana | http://webl.hry.nic.in/pwdhry Online
17 Daily Crime http://webl.hry.nic.in/crime Online
Reporting System
18 Haryana Vigilance http://webl.hry.nic.in/vigilance Online
19 Online Treasuries http://webl.hry.nic.in/otis Online
Information System
20 Personnel http://webl.hry.nic.in/pis Online
information System
21 Chief Secretary http://webl.hry.nic.in/pmis Online
Project monitoring
Information System
22 Registered Vehicles | http://webl.hry.nic.in/vahan Online

Details
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